
APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA 
MARCH 12, 2019 

7:00PM 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning 
Commission for March 12, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM 
 
CALL OF ROLL: 
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:  
Mark Lobermeier, Joel Ericson, Katie West Bryan Murdock, and Judy Coughlin  
 
ABSENT: Council Liaison Lisa Iverson 
 
Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator  
 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
OPEN FORUM: NONE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota 

Planning Commission for February 26, 2019 
 
Commissioner Coughlin noted that on page 2 of the minutes, half way down the page, it states 
that there are “60 varieties of trees”.  She stated that she believes he either said 6 or 16, not 60.  
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he will listen to the recording and see if he can decipher 
which number was said. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that three paragraphs below that, a reference to Pioneer Trail 
should be changed to Pioneer Road. 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER ERICSON, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR 
MEETING” OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA CITY COUNCIL FOR FEBRUARY 26, 2019, 
WITH THE AMENDMENTS AS DISCUSSED. 
 
Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent:   None 

 
SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  NONE 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
2. Comprehensive Plan Update – Land Use Chapter 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the way the agenda is laid out, the EDA strategic plan is under 
Communications, but he would like to talk about it now in order to get a fuller picture before 



2 
 

discussing the Comprehensive Plan Update. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that would be fine to discuss the EDA strategic plan at this 
point in the meeting.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that as he looked at the strategic plan, it seemed to represent the type 
of a plan that the Commission discussed at the last meeting, for example one that had a warm 
entry and pictures.  He stated that it is very well written and questions whether this document may 
be a starting point for the Comprehensive Plan Update for the Land Use Chapter. 
 
Commissioner West stated that the language in the EDA strategic plan is much more user friendly 
than the existing Comprehensive Plan.  She stated that she would like to make the 
Comprehensive Plan something that is easy for people to read and understand. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he likes the idea of using the EDA strategic plan document to 
enhance the Comprehensive Plan and noted that it is missing a vision section but definitely has 
things like the history and EDA sections that could be utilized in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he thinks that Mayor Iverson’s idea regarding getting public 
engagement around the vision was a good idea.  He stated that he still thinks it is a good idea to 
slog through the existing Comprehensive Plan so everyone knows what is currently in there and 
then the decision can be made on whether to use it or not.  He stated that after it had been 
reviewed, the City could gather public engagement before it tries to put together the updated 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Commissioner Murdock suggested that the City create an outline that covers the basic information 
to get public input from people.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he likes the term used by Mayor Iverson about the “culture” of the 
City and asking the question of why people live here and what they like about it.   
 
Commissioner Ericson noted that he comes from a huge corporation and this was work that was 
done every year.  He explained that the executives would develop a vision statement and then 
each department would develop goals and objectives that fit within the vision statement.  He 
stated that he thinks there is a good start to that in the EDA strategic plan document.  
 
Chair Lobermeier distributed copies of the outlines for the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 
Burnsville and the City of Rochester that he had a chance to work on.  He suggested that he and 
Zoning Administrator Weck can start pulling something similar to gather and draft an outline for 
Wyoming.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that in reading through the Planning and Zoning 101 documents 
she feels this is the base for ordinances and zoning.  She stated that the Comprehensive Plan 
needs to be in line with what the City is trying to enforce through ordinances and zoning.   
 
Commissioner West stated that she agreed and stated that she used Mahtomedi as a comparison 
because she grew up there.  She stated that the two communities are similar in size and 
Mahtomedi’s language was much more user friendly and clearly defines what the Comprehensive 
Plan is used for and what it hoped to accomplish.  She stated that the current version of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan has a lot of good information but it feels like it is a list of statistics.  She 
stated that she would also like to see the City state obtainable goals and not list a series of pipe 
dreams.   
 
Commissioner Ericson stated that he had also taken time to look at other Comprehensive Plans 
and noted that he didn’t see in our Comprehensive Plan how the City will address commuting and 



3 
 

transportation when all the new housing and businesses come to the area.  He stated that he also 
thinks the City needs to think about the way communities like North Branch or Stacy will develop 
as well, for example if they put in a big new development, there will be people traveling through 
the City and there needs to be infrastructure in place to support that.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the metro plans are required to have a transportation plan that 
follows their model and he doesn’t think the City has looked at the transportation piece in the past.  
He stated that the League of Minnesota Cities model has an implementation section but has not 
seen that in the Comprehensive Plan.  He stated that he would like to make sure that there is a 
plan for how the City actually gets to the plan and not just have a plan written on paper that means 
nothing. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that the Oklahoma City plan incorporated public input by listing 
the big ideas at the beginning of each section and clearly stated that they came from public input.       
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that if the Comprehensive Plan is really driven by the people and 
their input, it will be easier to enforce the rules because it is “their” plan. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that the land use plan section is about zoning and use areas and 
the map.  He stated that it would be nice if it started with a good map, showed the land use areas 
and then make sure the flow and order within the rest of the document all matches each other, so 
it is easy to follow.   
 
Commissioner West stated that Mahtomedi plan included a comparison of where the land use 
was for the last Comprehensive Plan and where they were now.  She noted that it was nice to 
see the progression.    
 
Commissioner Murdock stepped out of the meeting. 
 
Chair Lobermeier asked how the Comprehensive Plan effects the zoning plans in the 7-county 
metro area and outside of the 7-county metro area.   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck explained the difference in how the metro area has to move forward 
versus areas that are outside of the 7-county metro area.  He stated that the City wanted to avoid 
non-conforming uses to attempt to only rezone areas when the property owners are ready to be 
rezoned. 
 
Commissioner Murdock returned to the meeting. 
 
Chair Lobermeier suggested that Commission start digging into the Land Use section page by 
page. 
 
Commissioner Murdock noted that on page one he would change the last sentence of the third 
main paragraph to state “in addition, the policies are intended to ensure that the environment and 
other long-term public interests are given adequate consideration and protection.” 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that earlier in the paragraph it talks about the “community vision” but he 
isn’t sure what that actually is. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that on page 2 she feels the top paragraph is important and 
doesn’t want it to be lost.   
 
Commissioner Ericson noted that page 3 and 4 were where he noted that there should be 
something that addresses transportation and system integration in general. 
 



4 
 

Commissioner West stated that she wondered if the things listed were still the accurate goals and 
objectives for the City. 
 
Chair Lobermeier asked if the things listed were in order of importance or it is was random.  He 
stated that numbers 4 and 5 are about economic development so this area should match the EDA 
strategic plan.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin noted that this section is exactly what is on page S-2, word for word.   
 
Commissioner West stated that number 3 is a very long, run-on sentence that needs better 
sentence structure. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that number 8 should have something added that states “when 
feasible” to make it more realistic.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that he thinks the goals and objectives need to be simplified and 
then should start the section as the “big ideas” he talked about earlier.  He stated that the 
Oklahoma City plan then moves into talking about compatability and intensity of use and does a 
good job of explaining what the plan is all about.   
 
Commissioner Ericson stated that he feels number 1 and number 9 are very similar and could be 
combined and simplified. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he feels the next page should start with the map. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck distributed a new updated map and noted that it doesn’t have the 
wetland information.  He stated that he would like to see the same names used on both the 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning maps.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin noted that she would like to see everything mesh with zoning, for 
example semi-rural housing that will probably never have sewer and water be different than 
another semi-rural area that may eventually have sewer and water.  She gave examples of two 
areas zoned R-2, but they are totally different because of the sewer and water issue and she 
would like to make them work with this document so they are understandable.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that there are Urban Service Areas listed on page 15 and thinks that 
when the map is redone it will have to be added as residential zoning and then make the 
differentiation between those that will not have any water or sewer as a possibility and those that 
will be a permanently unserviced area. 
 
Commissioner West stated that she doesn’t understand what the goals are for the future sewer 
and water plans.  She stated that she would like to see that clearly outlined and easily understood. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that the Oklahoma City Comprehensive Plan did a good job of 
describing the areas that will not have City services. 
 
Chair Lobermeier suggested that this document look at everything from a high level of service 
and then drop down into the details.  He stated that he would like people to be able to see it and 
understand it at a glance.    
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that there was a presentation by WSB sometime last summer or 
fall where it really became clear on what areas of the City can be realistically serviced.  She asked 
if the recordings of those meetings were still available and if so, that they be shared with the new 
Commissioners to help them understand that information.  She stated that she thinks the City may 
need to refine where it wants commercial and industrial development now that this information is 



5 
 

known. 
 
Chair Lobermeier suggested discussing service areas at the next meeting. 
 
Commissioner Murdock noted that the Oklahoma City plan starts with undeveloped areas of the 
city and then moves their way up to the most developed areas which makes it clear what areas 
will not have sewer and water right up front.   
 
The Commission discussed zoning descriptions and how specific to get with what type of 
development will be encouraged in the different zones. 
 
Commissioner Ericson asked what “Rural Research and Development” is. 
 
Chair Lobermeier explained that was the Polaris site.    
 
Zoning Administrator Weck suggested that it be changed to “Industrial” to be more easily 
understood.    
 
Commissioner Coughlin noted that there are also some references to Wyoming Township that 
will need to be changed.  
 
Chair Lobermeier noted that on page 12, Land Use Policies, he was a bit confused about what 
should be done in this section and doesn’t understand its purpose.   
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that in the other document he reviewed, they had layers of things 
that may influence decisions or extenuating resources and thinks that may be what is trying to be 
stated in this section.  He stated that it is something that complements the development plan.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the agricultural description listed here belongs elsewhere in the 
document.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin noted that she thinks it was done this way because the intent was to 
eventually no longer have agricultural zoning.  She noted that the language will need to be 
changed because it will be based on the availability of sewer services.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the thinks the transportation sections of 6, 7 and 8 belong 
somewhere else and not in Land Use.   
 
Commissioner Murdock suggested looking at other cities Comprehensive Plan documents to 
make sure nothing is missed that the City just hasn’t thought of. 
 
The Commission discussed the Urban Services area and the meaning of “ultimate” service areas 
and whether it is necessary or if it should be split out to more realistic timeline and expectations.   
 
Commissioner West stated that she feels this document is going to be a marketing tool with 
developers, so it needs to clearly lay out where sewer services will be available because they 
need to know that when they are planning. 
 
Commissioner Murdock stated that the City does not want to vaguely promise service that 
realistically will not exist.   
 
Chair Lobermeier suggested that one of the map overlays outline the different service areas. 
 
Commissioner Murdock recommended it be something as simple as hardest to serve to easiest 
to serve using gradient shading.  He stated that he feels it needs to be formulaic to show what 



6 
 

needs to happen in order to get services in the different service areas.     
 
Commissioner Coughlin noted that on page 16 it talks about the “time horizon of the plan”, which 
she doesn’t think is clearly outlined.   
 
COMMUNICATIONS:   
 
3. EDA – City of Wyoming Strategic Plan 
 
 
4. League of Minnesota Cities – Planning and Zoning 101  

 
UPDATES:   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he isn’t sure yet of the EDA will be able to attend the March 
26, 2019 meeting to review their plan, but he will find out.   
 
Chair Lobermeier reminded the Commission about the Respectful Workplace training on April 10, 
2019 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ERICSON, SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER WEST, TO ADJOURN THE MARCH 12, 2019 “REGULAR MEETING” OF 
THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION AT 8:33 PM. 
 
Voting Aye:  Murdock, Ericson, Coughlin, West and Lobermeier 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent:   None 

 


	CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA

